
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
February 26, 2014 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the February 12, 2014 Board Meeting. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Recommend authorizing the General Manager to approve Change Order 

No. 6 for the Villanova Reservoir Repair and Interior Coating, Specification 
13-367, in the not to exceed amount of $44,000 to coat the exterior of the 
reservoir. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
 

 1 



7. Quagga mussel updates, discussion and direction to staff. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to staff 
 
8. Information Items: 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes. 
b. Investment Report. 

 
9. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Golden State 
Water Company v. Casitas Municipal Water District.  Case Number: 
56-2013-00433986-CU-WM-VTA. 

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. Code Sec. 54957) 
Title: General Manager 
 

10. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

 
 

 2 



Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
February 12, 2014 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held February 12, 2014 at 
Casitas' Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Hicks, Bergen, Kaiser, Baggerly 
and Word were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were 
three staff members and three members of the public in attendance.  President 
Hicks led the group in the flag salute. 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

Mike Tracy, a resident of Ventura and Ventura City Council member 
informed the board that he had been appointed to represent the City Council with 
Casitas. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that he would be at jury duty next 
Tuesday.  He then asked if the board had seen the conservation banners at the 
front of the building.  The newsletters are being delivered to the mail house 
tomorrow and will then be sent out.   
 

On January 31, 2014 State Water came out with a zero allocation for the 
first time in the 54 years of the project.  Discussions were held on Tuesday 
regarding the condition of the state water project and the indecision on how to 
redistribute what water is available.  They want to make sure they are serving the 
minimum health and safety but there are concerns on agriculture that relies on 
state water in the central valley. 
 

The most recent rainfall did very little in curbing the drought in Northern 
California.  Lake Orville is in pretty bad shape.  Folsom came up about ten feet 
but it is not enough to get above the 1977 drought trend.  This is a large issue.  
Last Friday Congresswoman Julia Brownley brought entities and the general 
managers of area water districts and flood control district together to obtain 
insight for herself as she returns to Washington.  She is looking for anything 
where she can help at the federal level. 
 

I attended the Board of Supervisors meeting yesterday afternoon.  There 
was a very good presentation including Fire Prevention, GSA and the Water 
Works districts that the county represents.  Steve Bennett asked for 
consideration of turf areas surrounding the Government Center.  It was good to 
hear that the county is participating in reducing their water demands.  There is a 
lot going on right now, and the drought is on everyone’s radar.  Everyone is 
participating with Governor Brown’s move to declare a water shortage 
emergency.   
 

Discussions are continuing with Ojai Valley Inn.  There is a potential for 
them to see how they can reduce the amount of water they use and see how to 
 1 



irrigate their turf in a shorter amount of time.  There may be a consideration of 
assistance regarding water with something to bring further to the board at a 
future date. This might be a good use of the capital facilities charge.   
 

I have a meeting this Friday with the Department of Health Services in 
Carpinteria to discuss options to continue our agreement on the delivery of water 
to Rincon Point. 
 

If there is interest by the board to see the progress at Villanova reservoir, I 
would prefer you contacting me and we can take you up there. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Word mentioned a pine tree that needs removal.  Director Kaiser 
asked about the ground squirrel population and Director Bergen mentioned that 
she had heard that Cal Trans will begin looking at their irrigation practices in light 
of the drought. Director Baggerly asked if there was any progress on the sound 
issue at Reeves Road.  Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that the first 
installation did not produce the desired results and we are waiting for product that 
is shipping from Minnesota on March 10th.   President Hicks mentioned a 
temporary hook up being used by Granite Construction that is leaking.  
 

President Hicks, on behalf of the Board, presented a thank you to Mr. 
Wickstrum for his 30 years of service to Casitas.   
 
4. Consent Agenda      ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the January 22, 2014 Board Meeting. 
b. Request of Pedro Martinez for Leak Relief. 

   
The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by 

Director Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
5. Bills        APPROVED 
 

The bills were offered by Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly 
and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Resolution approving a grant from California Department of Boating and 

Waterways for a new patrol boat.     ADOPTED 
 
 
 2 



Ms. Belser explained that we are in the position to get grant funding from 
Boating and Waterways to replace the Cortez and we are looking to get another 
aluminum jet boat like the Rogue.  This is the step for the board to approve and 
we will wait on approval of Boating and Waterways.  Director Kaiser asked how 
we would know that it would be powerful enough. Park Services Officer Taylor 
explained it would be similar to our current Rogue and power would not be an 
issue.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that there are issues with the Cortez as it is too 
large for our needs and it is difficult to maneuver or pull someone out of the 
water.  The Cortez will be provided back to the state. 
 

The Resolution was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director 
Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
  

Resolution is numbered 14-04. 
 
7. Recommend approval of Ordinance No. 14-01, Establishing Rules and 

Regulations for the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
          ADOPTED 

  
 Mr. Wickstrum explained this comes somewhat out of what we have 
changed in response to Lake Piru’s quagga mussels and moving the quarantine 
period to a higher number of days.  Also attached is the policy that staff operates 
by at Lake Casitas.   
 

On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly the above 
recommendation was passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
  
8. Recommend approval and setting of Reserves.   APPROVED 
   
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word the above 
recommendation was passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
9. Recommend acknowledgment and support of the General Manager’s 

recommendation for a salary adjustment and revision to the job 
description to the Public Affairs/Resource Manager position.  

          APPROVED 
 

 3 



  On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Bergen, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
 

President Hicks recessed the Casitas Board meeting at 3:34 p.m. and 
opened the Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation meeting. 
 
10. Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation Meeting 
 

a. Recommend approval of application for recognition of exemption and 
approval of power of attorney.     APPROVED 
 

Upon the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Kaiser the 
above recommendation to recognize the Accounting Manager and approve 
power of attorney was passed by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks,  
   Elshere 
NOES: Directors: None 

  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

 President Hicks adjourned the Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation 
meeting at 3:37 p.m. and reconvened the Casitas Board meeting. 
 
11. Information Items:       APPROVED 
 

a. Recreation Area Report for December, 2013. 
b. CSDA Webinar: Understanding Board Member & District Liability 

Issues. 
c. Finance Committee Minutes. 
d. Preliminary FY 2014-2015 Budget Schedule. 
e. Water Resources Minutes. 
f. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
g. Executive Committee Minutes. 
h. Water Consumption Report. 
i. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
j. Investment Report. 

 
Director Hicks questioned some bonds that have been purchased. 
  
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen the 

Information Items were approved for filing by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 4 



 
12. Adjournment  
 

President Hicks adjourned the meeting at 3:42 p.m. 
 
 
 
    ___________________________ 
    Pete Kaiser, Secretary 

 

 5 

































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER NO. 6-VILLANOVA RESERVOIR 
REPAIR AND INTERIOR COATING, SPECIFICATION 13-367 

DATE:  FEBRUARY 20, 2014 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to approve Change Order 
No. 6 for the Villanova Reservoir Repair and Interior Coating in the not-to-exceed amount of $44,000 to 
coat the exterior of the reservoir.   
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
Casitas Board of Directors awarded the contract to repair and coat the interior of the Villanova Reservoir 
on September 25, 2013 in the amount of $656,650.00.  The project included repairing the Villanova 
Reservoir structure and coating the interior of the reservoir.  The Board of Directors also authorized the 
General Manager to approve up to $100,000 in change orders and quantity increases.  To date, five 
change orders have been approved along with quantity increases for rafters, brackets and welding time. 
Additional quantity increases are being negotiated. Below is a summary of the change orders and 
quantity increases 
 

CHANGE ORDER-ITEM COST INCREASE 
Change Order 1-Increase Hatch Size 400 
Change Order 2-Center “Halo” 19,322 
Change Order 3-Roof Doubler Plate 2,350 
Change Order 4 500 
Change Order 5 3,000 
Rafters 28,800 
Brackets 2,320 
Welding Time 8,880 
Welding time still being negotiated  13,440 

TOTAL $79,012.00 
 
The contractor has proposed an additional change order to coat the exterior of the reservoir at a cost 
not-to-exceed $44,000.  Staff believe this is a very reasonable cost for this work.  The 10 year capital 
budget did propose to complete the exterior coating in 2018-19 Fiscal Year.  The FY 2013-14 Budget 
allocated $1,035,000 for the completion of this project. The total cost for the project with the proposed 
Change Order No. 6 and the maximum quantity increases will be $779,662.  This is still about 25% 
below budget. 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  February 21, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Finance Committee Meeting of February 21, 2014 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Mary Bergen and Director Jim Word  
 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Accounting Manager and Treasurer Denise Collin 
 Public:  Mr. Robert Baskin 
  

2. Public comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Management comments.  

The General Manager brought to the Committee a request to consider a change order to paint the entire 
exterior of the Villanova Reservoir.  Staff has received a tentative price of $44,000 to perform the work.  
The cost of the project would still remain under the budget cost estimate.  The change order would 
exceed the General Manager’s cost authority, therefore the Committee concurred that this change order 
be considered by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2014. 
 
The General Manager informed the Committee of costs that are likely to be incurred to re-stage pump(s) 
at Ventura Avenue No. 1 Pump Plant and Rincon Pump Plant, as a result of the declining lake levels 
during the summer. 
 

4. Review of the request from Robert Baskin for high usage. 
This is a follow up item from the January 26 Finance Committee meeting.  Denise Collin reported on 
information that had been gathered since the last Financial Committee meeting regarding Mr. Baskin’s 
water usage during November 2013.  The information reported described the testing of the meter 
serving Mr. Baskin’s property, and indicated that the meter is operating within acceptable standards and 
there are no apparent defects to the meter parts.  Mr. Baskin had reported to Denise Collin that he had 
talked to Mr. White, owner of a neighboring agricultural parcel, and that according to Mr. White there is 
no interconnection between the two private systems that may have resulted in such a large water use in 
November 2013.  Denise Collin also noted that Mr. Baskin had a leak in 2010 that Casitas staff had 
assisted him in finding, and that there was not a large loss of water during the 2010 water leak.  Mr. 
Baskin assured the Committee that there was no water leak in November 2013 and that the irrigation 
system had been turned off for two weeks of November 2013. 
 
The Committee suggested that this case be considered by the Board of Directors, during a regular 
meeting of March 2014 during which Mr. Baskin can plan to attend.  Mr. Baskin will call staff with 
information on which Board meeting he can attend.  The General Manager will also seek counsel’s 
advise on any legal issues that may arise in consideration of Mr. Baskin’s request for water billing relief. 

 1 



 
5. Review of the Finance Statement for January 2014. 

The Committee reviewed the expenditures in various work sections of the District.  Denise Collin noted 
that the district has received additional funding in miscellaneous account from the dissolution of the 
Redevelopment Agency, higher than budgeted revenue.  The Committee reviewed and noted several 
revenue trends in the recreation accounts.  

 
6. Review of the Water Consumption for January 2014. 

The Committee reviewed the water consumption numbers for January 2014.    The upward trending 
water demands by the Agricultural classification is indicative of the dry weather pattern and depleted 
groundwater basins, transferring the demand to the Lake Casitas supply.  There was a notable decline 
in the Resale classification from previous months.   

 

 2 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

02/20/14

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR BK 31331VK96 06/30/2014 $942,015 $942,508 5.650% 04/01/2013 6.39% 130

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,384,725 $1,337,418 1.625% 10/03/2012 9.07% 1914

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $720,398 $674,173 5.625% 01/16/2013 4.57% 2631

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XKTV7 06/13/2014 $948,576 $948,978 4.875% 04/01/2013 6.44% 113

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XLWN1 09/12/2014 $955,934 $956,310 5.250% 04/01/2013 6.49% 202

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $708,107 $724,150 2.875% 07/01/2010 4.91% 472

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/2015 $734,364 $754,404 4.750% 07/19/2010 5.12% 627

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134G34WJ 08/28/2014 $997,811 $998,236 0.375% 04/01/2013 6.77% 188

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $691,103 $697,234 1.375% 03/12/2012 4.73% 985

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,136,342 $1,146,100 5.125% 01/03/2012 7.77% 1347

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/2014 $704,390 $708,722 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.81% 158

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $209,281 $195,138 2.375% 02/11/2013 1.32% 2843

*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/2014 $705,448 $711,725 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.83% 206

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,127,784 $1,185,475 1.375% 07/06/2010 8.04% 1585

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/2014 $703,255 $710,773 2.125% 07/01/2010 4.82% 280

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/2020 $1,112,804 $1,176,332 1.375% 07/01/2010 7.98% 2125

*TB US Treasury Bond 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $769,964 $767,808 2.613% 12/13/2013 5.21% 3505

Accrued Interest $110,632

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $14,552,301 $14,746,115 80.38%

*CD cit Salt Lake City UT - CD 12/18/2023 $245,000 $242,479 3.30%

*CD Discover BK Greenwood DE - CD 01/16/2024 $239,000 $234,696 3.20%

*CD GE Capital - CD Draper, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $242,401 3.25%

*CD GE Capital - CD Salt Lake City, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $240,409 3.15%

*CD Goldman Sachs  - CD New York, NY 10/30/2023 $224,000 $222,015 3.25%

*CD Toyota Financial Services - CD -Henderson NV 12/20/2023 $245,000 $242,562 3.30%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $1,443,000 $1,424,561 7.77%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $445 $445 0.29% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,174,370 $2,174,370 0.33% Estimated 11.85%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $18,170,116 $18,345,491 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $18,180,974 $18,354,756

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,533,840 $14,780,067

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $356,604,129 $3,566,041

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $7 $7 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $374,774,252 $21,911,539

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $19,349,303 $19,595,531

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	02-26-14 Agenda
	02-12-14 min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	February 12, 2014

	approve change order 6 Villanova
	Fin Minutes 02 21 2014
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	Inter-Office Memorandum
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Investment Report 02-20-2014

